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PANTHER

INDUSTRIAL
PRODUCTS
LIMITED

NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 37T ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF
“PANTHER INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS LIMITED”WILL BE HELD ONTUESDAY, THE 30™ pAY OF
SEPTEMBER, 2025 AT 09:00 A.M. AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY FIRST FLOOR,
RADHA BHAVAN, 121, NAGINDAS MASTER ROAD, FORT, MUMBAI -400 001,INDIA, TO TRANSACT
THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS:

ORDINARY BUSINESSES:

Item No.1: To Consider and Adopt Audited Financials:

To receive, consider and adopt Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025 and Profit and Loss
Account for the year ended 31st March, 2025 and the Report of Directors and Auditors thereon,

Item No.2: Retirement of Directors by Rotation (Mr. Kaushik Chhotalal Shah):

To appoint director in place of Mr. Kaushik Chhotalal Shah(DIN: 00009510}, who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment.

Ttem No.3: Appointment of M/sRajesh H. Gupta & Co, Chartered accountant as a statutory
auditor for the first terms of five vears;

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without medification(s), the following resolution as
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions,
if any of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in
force) and based on the recommendations of the Audit: Committee and the Board of Directors of
the Company, M/s Rajesh H. Gupta & Co, Chartered Accountants, {having their Firm Registration
No. 133884W) be and are hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company, for the 1 term
of five years i.e. from the conclusion of this 37" Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of
the 42th Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2030 on such remuneration as may be
decided by the Board of Directors in consultation with the Statutory Auditors of the Company.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

Ttem No. 3: Appointment of Secretarial Auditor for The First Consecutive Term of Five
Years

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modiﬁcatioh(s) the following resolution as
a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, read
with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014, and Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended, and other applicable provisions, if any, the members of the
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company hereby approves the appoinﬁnent of M/s. Lalit Singhal& Associates, Company
Secretaries, as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the first term of five (5) consecutive
financia) years, commencing from FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30, to conduct the Secretarial Audit

of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Kaushik Chhotalal Shah, Managing Director of the
Company, be and are hereby severally authorized to sign and file all necessary forms, documents,
and returns, and to do all such acts, deeds, and things as may be necessary, desirable or expedient
to give effect to this resolution.

By order of the Board of Directors
For Pantheﬁg&gdustria! Products Limited

e
g

_ ‘%}E\ ?3;‘"
Kaushik Chhot'égl}al Shah
(Managing Director)
DIN: 00009510

Date: 06/49/2025
Place: Maharashira

NOTES:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS
ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY/ PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE
ON A POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/ HERSELF. A PROXY NEED NOT
BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. A PERSON CAN ACT AS PROXY
ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING FIFTY (50) AND
HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF
THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY. A MEMBER
HOLDING MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS MAY
APPOINT A SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY AND SUCH PERSON SHALL
NOT ACT AS A PROXY FOR ANY OTHER PERSON OR
SHAREHOLDER.

THE INSTRUMENT APPOINTING THE PROXY SHOULD, HOWEVER,
BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY
NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE
MEETING. PROXIES SHALL NOT HAVE ANY RIGHT TO SPEAK AT
THE MEETING. A PROXY FORM IS ANNEXED TO THIS NOTICE.

EVERY MEMBER ENTITLED TO VOTE AT THE MEETING, OR ON
ANY RESOLUTION TO BE MOVED THEREAT, SHALL BE ENTITLED
DURING THE PERIOD BEGINNING 24 HOURS BEFORE THE TIME
FIXED FOR THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING AND ENDING
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WITH THE CONCLUSION OF THE MEETING, TO INSPECT THE
PROXIES LODGED, AT ANY TIME DURING THE BUSINESS HOURS
OF THE COMPANY, PROVIDED THAT NOT LESS THAN THREE
DAYS NOTICE IN WRITING OF THE INTENTION SO TO INSPECT 1S
GIVEN TO THE COMPANY. :

The businesses set out in the Notice will be transacted through remote electronic
voting system and the Company 15 providing facility for voting by remote
electronic means. Instructions and other information relating to remote e-voting

are given in the Notice under Note No. 14.

Members attending the meeting, who have not cast their vote by remote g-voling,
shall be able to exercise their right to vote at the meeting through ballot papers.
Members who have cast their votes by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may
attend the AGM but shall not be entitled 1o cast their votes again.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain
closed from Wednesday24™ day of September, 2025 to Monday 307 day of
September, 2025(both days inclusive).

Members may please note that SQERI  vide its Circular  No.
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD _ RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated January 23, 2022 has
mandated the listed companies 0 issue securities in dematerialized form only -
while processing service requests viz. Tssue of duplicate securities certificate;
claim from unclaimed suspense account; renewal/ exchange of securities
certificate;  endorsement; sub-divisior/splitting ~ of gecurities  certificate;
consolidation of securities certificates/folios; transmission and transposition.
Accordingly, Members are requested lo make service requests by submifting a
duly filled and signed Form ISR - 4, the format of which is available on the
Company’s website at httpsht’tn::’/wxwv.pamherindustrialproductsltd.com,-’under

shareholder information {ab.

SEBI vide its notification dated January 24, 2022 has mandated that all requests
for transfer of securities including transmission and transposition re'quesis shall be
processed only In dematerialized form. in view of the same and to eliminate ali
risks associated with physical <hares and avail various benefits of
dematerialization. Members are advised to dematerialize the shares held by them
in physical torm. Members can contact the Company or RTA of the company 1.¢.
MUFG Intime India Private Limited, for assistance in this regard. .

Further, SEBI vide its notification no- SERI/LAD-NRO/GN/2022/80 dated April
25 2022 and notification no- S'EBUHOKMIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMBKPXC.H{/’ZOE?,;“()S
dated May 18 2022 has simplified the transmission process and prescribed
documents to be executed in case of transmission of securities.



6. Norms for furnishing of PAN, KYC, Bank details and Nomination:

Pursuant to SEBI Circular no. SERI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSDPoD- 1/P/ CIR/2023/37
dated March 16, 2023, issued in supersession of earlier circulars issued by SEB!
bearing nos. SEBI/HO/ MIRSD/MIRSD RTAMB /P/CIR/2021/655 and
SEBL/LIO/MIRSD/ MIRSD RTAMB/ P/CIR/2021/687 dated November 3, 2021
and December 14, 2021, respectively, SEBI has mandated all tisted companies to
record PAN, Nomination, Contact details, Bank A/c details and Specimen
signature for their corresponding folio numbers of holders of physical securities.
The folioswherein any one of the cited documents/details is notavailable on or
after October 1, 2023, shall be frozen byithe RTA. The securities in the frozen
folios shall be eligible:

s« To lodge any grievance Of avail of any service, only after furnishing the
complete documents / details as mentioned above;

o To receive any payment including dividend, interest or redemption amount
(which would be only through electronic mode) only after they comply
with the above stated requirements.

Furthenmore, such frozen folios shall be reterred byu RTA/Company to the
administering authority under the Benami Transactions {Prohibitions) Act, 1988
and/or Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002, after December 31, 2025

The forms for updation of PAN, KYC, bank details and Nomination viz., Forms
ISR-1, ISR-2, ISR-3, GH-13  are  available on  our website
http://www .pantherindustrialproductsltd.com/ under shareholder information tab.

In view of the above, we urge Members holding shares in physica! form to submit
the required forms along with the supporting documents at the earliest.

Company has issued letters to all Shareholders of the company along with two
reminders for PAN Card, Bank account details and dematerialization of shares held
in physical form as required by SEBI vide its circular number
SEBI/RO/MIRSD/DOPL/CIR/P/2018/73  dated 20" April 2018 followed by BSE
circular LIST/COMP/15/2018-19 dated 5t July, 2018.

Pursuant 10 SEBL circular no.
SERI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/655 dated 03" November 2021
Company has sent letters along with the help of RTA (MUFG Intime India Private
Limited) for furnishing the details required as per aforesaid circular.

Further, Pursuant to SEBI Circular no. SEBVHOMIRSD/MIRSDPoD-  1/P/
CIR/2023/37 dated March 16, 2023 Company has sent 2" reminders letters to the
shareholders of the company with the help of RTA MUFG Intime India Private
Limited for fumnishing the details required as per aforesaid circular.



7.

10.

11.

Mermbers who hold shares in dematerialized form and wish to update their PAN,
KYC, Bank details and Nomination, are req aested to contact their respective DPs.

As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act and SEBI Circular, the facility tor
making nomination 15 available for the Members in respect of the shares held by
them. Members who have not yet registered their nomination are requested 10
register the same by gubmitting Form No. SH-13. [f 2 Member desires to opt out or
cancel the earlier nomination and record a fresh nomination, he/ she may gubmit
the same in Form ISR-3 or SH-14 as the case may be. The said forms can be
downloaded from the Company’s website
http:/wa.pantherindustrialproductsltd.com/ under shareholder information tab.
Members are requested to submit the said details to their DP in case the shares are
held by them in dematerialized form and to Company’s RTA MUFG Intime
India Private Limitedin case the shares are held in physical form...

Members holding shares in physical form, in identical order of names, in more
than one folio are requested to send to the Company or RTA (MUFG Intime
India Private Limited), the details of such folios together with the share
certificates along with the requisite KYC Documents for consolidating their
holdings in one folio. Requests for consolidation of share certificates shall be
processed in dematerialized form. '

In case of Joiut holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher
in the order of names will be entiiled to vote. '

Non-resident Indian Members are requested to Inform Cbmpany’s Regjstrar and
Share Transfer Agent, MUFG Intime India Private Limited,immediately of: '

(a) Change in their residential status on return to India for permanent settlement.

(b) Particulars of their bank account maintained in India with complete name,
branch, account type, account number and address of the bank with pin code
number. if not furnished earlier.

SEBI & Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) is promoting eclectronic
communication as a contribution to greener environment. Accordingly, as a part of
green initiative soft copy of the Annual Report 2024-25 is being sent 10 all the
members whose email address(es) are registered with the Company/Depository
Participant(s) unless any member has requested for a hard copy of the same.

Notice of the AGM and the Annual Report for the Financial Year 2024-25
including therein the Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year 2024-25,
will be avajlable on  the website of the  Company  at
htto:f’f\mwr.pantherindustrialproductsitd.comfand also available on the website of
BSE Limited at www bseindia.com. The Notice of AGM will also be available on
the website of CSDL at www.evotingindia.cotn

The physical copies of the aforesaid documents will also be available at the
Company's Registered Office for inspection during normal business hours on



working days. For any communication, the shareholders may also send requests to
the Company’s vestor email id piplip/@rediffmail con

12. As required under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and
Secretarial Standard 2, No Director is seeking re-appointment at this AGM,

13. To receive shareholders’ communications through electronic means, inciuding
Annual Reports and Notices, members are requested to kindly register/update thelr

e-mail address with their respective depository participant, where shares are held
‘n electronic form, where shares are held in physical form, members are advised to
register their e-mail address with MUFG Intime India Private Limited. In case
of queries, members are requested to write to piplin@rediffmail.com

14. Voting through electronic means

1.

IL.

IH.

In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013
and Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,
2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and Administration}
Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, members may cast their
vote on all the resolutions proposed to be considered in this Annual General
Meeting by electronic means from a remote location (“Remote E-voting™)
and the Company is pleased to provide to its members the facility to exercise
their right to vote on resolutions proposed to be considered at the Annual
General Meeting by “Remote E-voting”. The company has engaged Central
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the facility of casting the
votes by the members using an electronic voting system from a place other
than venue of the AGM (“Remote E-voting”) will be provided by CDSL.

Members of the company, instead of casting their votes by the aforesaid
“Remote E-voting” may cast their vote at the venue of the Annual General
Meeting through physical ballot papers, which shall be made available at the
verue of the AGM and only such members attending the meeting, who have
not cast their vote by remote e-voting, shall be able to exercise their right to
vote at the meeting through ballot papers or by show off hands.

The process and manner for remote e-voting are as under:

(i) The voting period begins on Saturday the 27t day of September
2025 from 9.00 AM. and ends on Monday the 29" day of
September 2025 up to 5.00 P. M. During this period shareholders of
the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date} of 2314
September 2025, may cast their vote electronically. The E-voting
module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.



(iD)

(i)

(iv)

(¥)

Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting datewould
not be entitled to vote at the meeting venue. '

Pursuant to SEB1 Circular No. SEBUHOICFD!CMD!ClRfPfZOZO!ZLQ
dated 09,12.2020, under Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regutations, 2015,
listed entities are required to provide remote e-yoting facility to its
sharchoiders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it -has
been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional
shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-
voting facility to listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on
yarious ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the
shareholders

Tn order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a
public consultation, it has been decided to enable e-voting 1o all the
demat account holders, by way of 2 single login credential, through
their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository
Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote
without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only
facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and
convenience of participating in e-voting process.

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242
dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode
are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to
update their mobile qumber and email Id in their demat accounts in
order to access e-Voting facility. '

Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voﬁng for
Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL i3
given below '

REMOTE EVOTING INSTRUCTION S

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/2023/120 dated July 11, 2623, Individuéll
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account '
maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. '

Shareholders are advised 1o undate their mobile number and email Id correctly in their demat accounts 10

access remote e-Voting facility.




Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode:

Individual Shareholders holdingsecurities in demat mode with NSDL

METHOD 1 - NSDL 1DeAS facility

Shareholders registered for IDeAS facility:

a)

b)
¢)

d)

Visit URL: https://eservices.nsdl.comand click on “Beneficial OQwner” icon under “IDeAS Login
Section”.

Click on “Beneficial Owner” icon under “IDeAS Login Section”. :

Post successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added
services section. Click on “Access 10 e-Voting” under e-Voting services.

Click on “MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you will
be redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period.

Shareholders not registered for IDeAS facility:

a)

b)

¢)
4

To register, visit URL: hitps://eservices.nsdl.com and select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal”
or click on lfnttps://esewices.nsdl.comf Secure Web/IdeasDirectReg.isp

Enter 8-character DP 1D, 8-digit Client ID, Mobile no, Verification code & click on “Submit”.
Enter the last 4 digits of your bank account / generate ‘OTP’
Post successful registration, user  sraris: s
will be provided with Login 1D
and password. Follow steps given
above in points (a-d).

o . ﬁ":? s :

ot

METHOD 2 - NSDL e-voting website

a)
b)
)

)

e)

Visit URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com

Click on the “Login” tab available under ‘Shareholder/Member” section.

Enter User ID (i.e., your 16-digit demat account no. held with NSDL), Password/OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen.

Post successful authentication, you will be re-directed to NSDL depository website wherein you
will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting”
under e-Voting services.

Click on “MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you will
be redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period.



METHOD 3 - NSDL OTP based login

a) Visit URL: https://eservices.nsdi.com/ Secure Web/evoting/evotinglogin jsp

b) Enter your 8 - character DP ID, § - digit Client Id, PAN, Verification code and generate OTP.

¢) Enter the OTP received on your registered email ID/mobile number and click on login.

d) Post successful authentication, you will be re-directed to NSDL depository website wherein
you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access 10 e-
Voting” under e-Voting services. '

¢) Click on “MUFG InTime” or “gyoting link displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you
will be redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period.

Individual Shareholders registered with CDS1. Easi/ Easiest facility

METHOD 1 - CDSL Easi/ Easiest facility:

Shareholders registered for Easi/ Easiest facility:

a)

b)
<)

ViSitURL:https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitokeanomefLoginorww.cdslindia.co

m& click on NewSystem Myeasi Tab.

Enter existing username, Password & click on “Login™.

Post successful authentication, user will be able to see e-voting option. The evoting option will
have links of e-voting service providers i.e., MUFG InTime.Click on “MUFG InTime” or
“avoting link displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you will be redirected to InstaVote
website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period.

Shareholders not registered for Easi/ Easiest facility:

a)

b)
¢)

To register, visit URL: https://web.cds]ir1dia.conﬂmyeasitokenfRegistrati()n/EasiRegist_ration /

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasnokerﬂ{e gistration/EasiestRegistration
Proceed with updating the required fields for registration.

Post successful registration, vser will be provided username and password. Follow steps given
above in points (a-c).

METHOD 2 - CDSL e-voting page

a)
b)
<)
O

e)

Visit URL: https://www.cdslindia.com

Go to e-voting tab. '

Enter 16-digit Demat Account Number (BO ID) and PAN No. and click on “Submit”.

System will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile and Email as recorded in
Demat Account ,

Post successful authentication, user will be able to see e-voting option. The evoting option will
have links of e-voting service providers ie., MUFG InTime. Click on “MUFG InTime” or
“evoting link displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you will be redirected to InstaVote
website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period.



Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with Depository Participant

Individua! shareholders can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your
depository participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-voting facility.

a) Login to DP website
b) After Successful lo gin, user shall navigate through “e-voting” option.
¢) Click on e-voting option, user will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository website after
successful authentication, wherein user can see e-voling feature. '
d) Post successful authentication, click on “MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside
© Company’s Name” and you will be redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote during the

remote e-voting period.

Login method for shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual Sharehoiders
holding securities in demat mode.

Shareholders holding shares in physical mode/ Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in
demat mode as on the cut-off date for e-voting may register and vote on InstaVote as under:

STEP 1: LOGIN / SIGNUP to InstaVote
Shareholders registered for INSTAVOTE facilitjf:

a) Visit URL: https:/finstavote.linkintime.co.in& click on “Login” under ‘SHARE
HOLDER’ tab.
b) Enter details as under:
1. User ID: Eater User [D
7 Password:  Enter  existing
Password
3 Enter Image  Verification
(CAPTCHA) Code
4. Click “Submit”. _
(Home page of e-voting witlopen. Follow the process oiven under "Steps 1o cast yote for
Resolutions™) . '

Shareholders not registered for INSTAVOTE facility:

a) Visit URL: htt_ps://instavote.linkintimc.co.in& click on “Sign Up” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab
& register with details as under:
1. User ID: Enter User [D
7. PAN: Enter your 10-digit
Permanent Account Number
(PAN) (Shareholders who have
updated their PAN with the

not




Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the sequence number provided to you, if
applicable.

3. DOB/DOT: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As recorded with
your DP/Company - i DD/MM/YYYY format)

4. Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as recorded with
your DP/Company.
o Shareholders holding shares in NSDL form, shall provide ‘D’ above
o Shareholders holding shares in physical form but have not recorded ‘C’ and ‘D’, shall

provide their Folio number in ‘D’ above

5. Set the password of your choice. _
(The password should contain minimum 8§ characters, at least one speciat Character(1#$&*),
at least one numeral, at least one aiphabet and at least one capital letter).

6. Enter Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code.

7. Click “Submit” (You have now registered on InstaVote). -
Post successful registration, click on “Login” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab& tollow steps

given above in points (a-b).
STEP 2:Steps to cast vote for Resolutions through InstaVote

A. Post successful authentication and redirection to InstaVote inbox page, you will be able to see the-
. “Notification for e-voting”.

B. Select ‘View’ icon.E-voting page will appear.

C. Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option ‘Favour /
Against’ (If you wish to view the entire Resolution details, click on the “View Resolution’ file
tink).

D. After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’.

E. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “Yes’, else to
change your vote, click on ‘No” and accordingly modify your vote.

NOTE: Shareholders may click on “Vote as per Proxy Advisar's Recommendation” optionand view proxy advisor
recommendations for each resolution before casting vote.“Vote as per Proxy Advisor's Recommendation”
option provides access to expert insights during the e-Voting process. Shareholders may maodify their vote
before final submission.

Once you cast your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change it
subsequently.

Guidelines for Institutional shareholders {(*Custodian / Corporate Body/Mutual Fund™)
STEP 1 — Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund Registration
A. Visit URL: https:/instavote.Jinkintime.co.in

B. Click on “Sign Up” under “Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund”
C. Fill up your entity details and submit the form.



D. A declaration form and organization ID is generated and sent to the Primary contact person email
ID (which is filled at the time of sign up). The said form is to be signed by the Authorised
Signatory, Director, Company Secretary of the entity & stamped and sent 10
insta.vote@linkintime.co.in. '

E. Thereafter, Login credentials (User ID; Organisation 1D; Password) is sent to Primary contact
person’s email ID. (You have now registered on InstaVote)

STEP 2 — Investor Mapping

A. Visit URL: https:// instavote.linkintime.co.inand login with InstaVote Login credentials.
B. Click on “Investor Mapping” tab under the Menu Section
C. Map the Investor with the following details:

1) ‘Investor ID” —Investor 1D for NSDL demat account is 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit
Client ID i.e., IN00000012345678; Investor 1D for CDSL demat account is 16 Digit
Beneficiary ID.

2) ‘Investor’s Name - Enter Tnvestor’s Name as updaied with DP.

3) ‘Investor PAN - Enter your 10-digit PAN.

4y ‘Power of Attorey’ - Attach Board resolution or Power of Attorney.

NOTE: File Name for the Board resolution/Power of Attorney shall be — DP ID and Client ID
or 16 Digit Beneficiary ID. . '

Further, Custodians and Mutual Funds shall also upload specimen signatures.
D. Click on Submit bution.(The investor is now mapped with the Custodian / Corporate Body/
Mutual Fund Entity). The same can be viewed under the “Report Section”.

STEP 3 — Steps to cast vote for Resolutions through InstaVote
The corporate shareholder can vote by two methods, during the remote e-voting period.
METHOD 1 - VOTES ENTRY

) Visit URL: hitps:// ‘nstavote linkintime.co.inand login with InstaVote Lo gin credentials.

b) Click on “Votes Entry” tab under the Menu section. '

¢) Enter the “Event No.” for which you want to cast vote.
Event No. can be viewed on the home page of InstaVote under “On-going Events”.

d) Enter “16-digit Demat Account No.”,

¢} Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option ‘Favour /
Against’ (If you wish to view the entire Resolution details, click on the ‘View Resolution’ file
link). After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’

f) A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on *Yes’, else 1o
change your vote, click on ‘No’ and accordingly modify your vote.
(Once you cast your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change it
subsequently).



METHOD 2 - VOTES UPLOAD

a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.inand login with InstaVote Login credentials.
b) After successful login, you will see “Notification for e-voting™.
¢) Select “View” icon for “Company’s Name / Event number” .
d) E-voting page will appear.
e) Download sample vote file from “Download Sample Vote File” tab.
f) Cast your vote by selecting your desired option ‘Favour / Against’ in the sample vote file and
upload the same under “Upload Vote File” option.
g) Click on ‘Submit’. ‘Data uploaded successfully’ message will be displayed.
(Once you cast your vote on the resclution, you will not be allowed to modify or change it

subsequently).

Important note; Members who are unable to retrieve User 1D/ Password are advised to_use
Forgeet User 1D and Forget Password option available af abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical
issues related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details ]
Tndividua! Shareholders holding Members facing any technical 1ssue in login can
securities in Demat mode withj contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at
CDSL helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll
free no. 1800 21 09911
Individual Shareholders holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can
securities in Demat mode with | contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at
NSDL evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at - 022 - 4886 7000 and
| 022 - 2499 7000 ]

(v) Login method for e-Voting for Physical shareholders and shareholders other than individual
holding in Demat form. -

1. The shareholders should log on to the e-voting Webgi&%m-‘W.f:V@tiﬂgindia.com.

2. Click on “Shareholders” module.

3. Now enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary 1D,
b, For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered

with the Company.
4. Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.



5. If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on
an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

6. If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

- For Physical shareholders and other than
individual shareholders holding shares in Demat.
PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by
Income Tax Department (Applicable for both
demat  shareholders as well as  physical
shareholders)
Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with
the Company/Depository Participant are requested
to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA
or contact Company/RTA. -
Dividend Bank Details Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth
(in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat
OR account or in the company records in order to login.
e If both the details are not recorded with the
Date of Birth depository or company, please enter the member id
(DOB) / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field.
(vi)  After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.
(vii)  Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company
selection screen. However, sharehclders holding shares in demat form will now reach
“Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login
password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by
the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are
eligible to vote, provided that compa.ny opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It 18
strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost
care to keep your password confidential.
(viii)  For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting
on the resolutions contained in this Notice.
(ix)  Click on the EVSN for the relevant PANTHER INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS LTD.on
which you choose to vote.
(%) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same

the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option
YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to
the Resolution.



(xi)

(xii)

(xiiD)

(xiv)

()

(xvi)

(xvii)

Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution
details.

After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else
to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resofution, you will not be allowed to modify

your vote.

You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on

the Voting page.

If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User 1D and the
image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by

the system.

There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be

made available to scrutinizer for verification.

Additional Facility for Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians —For Remote
Voting only.

Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and
Custodians are required to log on to www.evolingindia.com and register
themselves in the “Corporates” module.

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the
entity should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting(@cdslindia.com,

After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the
admin login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the
account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to
helpdesk.evoting@edslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they would be
able to cast their vote.

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which
they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF
format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. '

Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant
Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature
of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer



and to the Company at the email address viz piplin@rediffmail.com if they have
voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for
the scrutinizer to verify the same.

(xviii) Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and become Member of the
Company after dispatch of the Notice and holding shares as on the cut- off date
i.e. 23rd September 2025 may follow the same instructions as mentioned above
for e-Voting.

(xix) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the
Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs™) and e-voting manual available at
www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to
helpdesk.evoting@edslindia.com '

General Instructions:

a) The voting period begins on Saturdaythe 27" day of September, 2025
from 9.00 A.M. and ends onthe Monday, 29" day of September 2025 up
to 5.00 P. M. During this period shareholders’ of the Company,
holding shares, as on the cut-off date of 23" September 2025 may
cast their vote electronically.

b) The voting right of the shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares
of the paid up Equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date
(record date) of 237 September 2025. |

¢} M/sSubhash Purohit & Associates, Company Secretaries in practlce,

' has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in
a fair and transparent manner. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after
the conclusion of voting at the Annual General ‘Meeting, first count the
votes cast at the meeting, thereafter unblock the votes cast through
remote e-voting in the presence of at least 2 (two) witnesses not in
employment of the Company and make not later 2 working days of the
conclusion of the meeting, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total
votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman and/or Director or
a person authorized by him in writing who shall counter sign the same.

d)} The results shall be declared forthwith upon receipt of the Scrutinizer’s
Report. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be
placed on the Company’s website
http://www .pantherindustrialproductsltd.comand communicated to the
stock exchanges where shares of the Company are listed.

15. Members desiring any information relating to the accounts are requested to
write to the Company well in advance so as to enable the management to keep
the information ready.



16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice shall be open for
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during normal business
hours (10.30 am to 5.30 pm) on all working days, up to and including the date
of Annual General Meeting of the Company. '

Regulation 44(6) of SEBI Listing Regulations, 18 not applicable on the
company, therefore conducting live webcast of proceedings of AGM is not
required during the vear under review.

The route map showing directions to reach the venue of the 37"AGM is
annexed.

As a measure of economy, copies of Annual Report will not be distributed at
he venue of the AGM. Members are, therefore, requested to bring their own
copies of the Annual Report to the meeting.

Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend
the Meeting are requested to send to the Company a certified true copy of the
Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on thelr
behalf at the meeting atleast 3 days before the AGM.

By order of the Board of Directors
For Panther Industrial Products Limited

*

A\

N

*{\\ y ’

.
S\ Y

Kaushik Chhotalal Shah
(Managing Birector)
DIN: 60009510

Date; 06/09/2025
Place: Maharashtra



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 102 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013
ANNEXURE-1: TO THE 37%" AGM NOTICE

ITEM NO. 03

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, M/s. Lalit Singhal& Associates, Company
Secretaries appointed as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company. In light of the recent amendmients to
Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
Secretarial Auditors are now required to be appointed for a fixed term of five consecutive years.

M/s. Lalit Singhal & Associates, Company Secretaries, have confirmed their eligibility for
appointment via letter dated 06" September, 2025, and their candidature has been reviewed by the
" Audit Committee. The Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on 06™ September,
2025, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, approved the appointment of M/s. Lalit
Singhal& Associates, Company Secretaries, as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a first term
of five (5) consecutive financial years, from FY 202526 to FY 2029-30, to conduct the Sccretarial
Audit of the Company in accordance with applicable provisions, subject to the approval of members in
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

The Board recommends the resolution set forth in the accompanying Notice for the approval of the
members by way of a special Resolution.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives is concerned or
interested,financially or otherwise, in the resolution in item No. 3.



Annexure to AGM Notice

Details of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the forthcoming 37* Annual General Meeting

Name of Director

Mr. Kaushik Chhotalal Shah

Date of Birth 05/09/1969
DIN 00009510
Original date of appointment 07/08/1999

Re-appointment/Cessation & term  of

appointment

Appointed as Director

Reason for Change viz. appcintment, re-
appointment, resignation, removal, death or
otherwise :

Retire by rotation and reappointment as director
subject to the approval of members

Brief Profile (in case of appointment) Experience in finance and accounting for
morethan 20 years
Disclosure  of  relationships  between | No

directors (in case of appointment of a
director)




MGT-11
PROXY FORM
Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN: L17110MH1987PLC045042
Name of the Company: PANTHER INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS LIMITED
Registered office: 121 RADHA BHUVANIST FLOOR NAGINDAS MASTER ROAD, MUMBAIL

Maharashtra- 400023

Name of the member(s):
Registered address:

E-mail ID:

Folio/DP ID-Client 1D No:

I/We being the member(s) of shares of the above named Company hereby appoint:
{1) Name: Address:

E-mail 1D Signature: or failing him;
(2) Name: Address:

E-mail ID Signature: or failing him;
(3) Name: Address:

E-mail ID Signature:

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 37" Annual General Meeting of
the Company, to be held on Tuesday, 30" Day of September, 2025 at 9.00 am. at the registered office of the
company at FIRST FLOOR, RADHA BHAVAN, 121, NAGINDAS MASTER ROAD, FORT, MUMBAI -400 001,
and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

]I\fg“‘ ! RESOLUTIONS Optional *
o !

For Against

To receive, consider and adopt the audited standalone financial statements of the
1 Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, together with the reports of i
the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon

To re-appoint Mr. Kaushik Chhotalal Shah, who retires by rotatien as a Director,

2 and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. E
3 Appointment of M/s Rajesh . Gupta & Co, Chartered accountant as a statutory

' auditor for the first terms of five vears
4 To appoint M/s Lalit Singhal& Associates, Company Secretaries in practice, as

) Secretarial Auditors of the Company :
Signed this Affix One

Rupee
Revenue

Stamp




Signature of Shareholder
Signature of Proxy Holder (s)

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

ATTENDANCE SLIP

FOLIO NO.

Number of Shares held

Signature

I certify that I am a member/Proxy for the members of the Company.

I hereby Record my presence at the 37th Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Tuesday, 30th Day
of September, 2025 at 9.00 a.m. at the registered office of the company at FIRST FLOOR, RADHA BHAVAN, 121,

NAGINDAS MASTER ROAD, FORT, MUMBAI -400 001

Signature of Member / Proxy

Notes:
a) Only Member / Proxy can attend the meeting. No mincrs would be allowed at the meeting.
b) Member / Proxy wish to attend the meeting must bring this attendance slip to the meeting and handover at the

entrance duly filled in and signed.
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PANTHER
INDUSTRIAL
PRODUCTS
LIMITED

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Dear Members,
PANTHER INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS LIMITED
Address- 121 Radha Bhuvan 1* Floor Nagindas Master Road, Mumbai, Maharashtra, India — 400 001

The Directors have pleasure in presenting before you the 37% Annpual Report on the business and
operations of the Company along-with the audiied Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit & Less for
the financial year ended on 315 March, 2025.

-

FINANCIAL RESULTS
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31% March, 2025 | 31° March, 2024
Revenue from Operations - -
Income 19,87,536 72,72,014
Other Income 30,339 -
Total Income 20,17,875 72,772,014
Cost of Materiat Consumed - -
Personal Expenses - - |
Administration Expenses - -
Financial Expenses - -
Depreciation Expense 1,65.820 1,34,222
Other Expenses 64,28,614 55,59,533
Total expenses 65,94,434 56,93,755
Profit (+)/Loss (-) before tax (45,76,559) 15,78,259
Less:; Current Tax - 6,12,100
Deferred Tax Asset - -
Deferred Tax Liability - -
Profit (Loss) of the year (45,76,559) 9.66,159 |

DIVIDEND

With a view to conserve resources, no dividend is recommended.

TRANSFER OF GENERAL RESERVE

During the year under review, no amount was proposed to be transferred to the reserve.

First Floor, Radha Bhavan, 121, Nagindas Master Road, Fort, Mumbai 400 001

Tel.: 91-22-66368107 / 2267 7712 = CIN : L17110MH1987PLC045042

E-mail: piplin@rediffmail.com * Website : www.pantherindustrialproductsltd.com



NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD
Total Eleven Board Mesting was held during the Financial Year ended on March 31%, 2025 with
given below details:

18t June, 2024

15" June, 2024

18% June, 2024

01t August, 2024

13% August, 2024

15% October, 2024

06" November, 2024

13" November, 2024

25% November, 2024

17% January, 2025

07" February, 2025

MANAGEMENT OF THE COMPANY
The following persons continue to be the Director and KMP’s of the Company:

['s. Name of Directors / KMP DIN / PAN / Membership Designation

No. Number

1. Kaushik Chhotalal Shah 00009510 _ Managing Director

2. Priyanka Garg 10427175 Additional Director

3. Raju Kumar Mishra | 10669475 Additional Director

4, Abhijit Yashwant Kadam W6?56295 Whole-time director I
and CFO j

5. | Pooja Jain A43404 | Company Secreiary

*During the period under review following person has been appointed or resigned from the post
of Directors / KMP’s are:

1. Abhijit Yashwant Kadam appointed as CFO of the compaiy w.e.f01% June, 2024

2. Pooja Jain appointed as Company Secretary of the company w.e.f 01 June, 2024

3. Raju Kumar Mishra appointed as Additional Director of the company w.e.f 15" June, 2024
4. Priyanka Garg appointed as Additional Director of the company w.e.f 01% June, 2024

REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY:

During the year under review the company held EGM on 18" day of March, 2025 to shift the
registered office from 121 Radha Bhuvan 1% Floor Nagindas Master Road, Mumbai, Maharashtra,
India — 400 001 to 1% Floor, Mohan Nagar, Thatipur, Gwalior, Madhya Pradesh, India — 474 011,

MANAGEMENT VISION
During the year under review, the Company has earned a loss of Rs. (45,76,559)/-. However, is
constantly working on the future plans for further improving the same.

SHARE CAPITAL
There is no change in the Authorized and Paid-Up Equity Share Capital of the company during the
year.

The Authorized Equity Share Capital of the Company 1s Rs. 2.00,00,000/- (Rupees Two Crore Only)
divided into 19,50,000 (Nineteen Lakh Fifty Thousand) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten) each
and 50,000 (Fifty Thousand) 12% Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.10/~(Rupees Ten) each



The Paid-Up Share Capital of the Company is Rs, 1,40,00,9?0/- (Rupees One Crore Forty Lakh Nine
Hundred Seventy Only) divided into 14,00,007 (Fourteen Lakh Seven Only) Equity Shares of Rs.10/-
(Rupees Ten) each and 90 (Ninety) 12% Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.10/-(Rupees Teu) each

PUBLIC DEPOSITS _
The Company has neither invited nor accepted any doposit from the public during the period under

review.

PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARANTELE OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

The Company has not made any investments, given guarantees, oOr provided securities during the
financial year under review and the company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and details of the same has given in the Financiai Statements.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMM [TMENTS
No Material Changes and Commitments affecting the financial position of the company occurred
between the end of the financial year to which this financial statement relates and the date of this

report.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACT OR ARRANG EMENT WITH RELATED PARTIES
The Company has not entered into any confract or arrangement with retated party and therefore
section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 has not applicable on the Company.

CONSERVATION_OF ENERGY AND T ECHNOLOGY, ABSORPTION. AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The Provisions of section 134 (3} (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies
(Account) Rules, 2014 regarding Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption do not apply to
your company as the operation of your Company are not energy-intensive. However, the management
has taken all the adequate steps to reduce energy consumption by using energy-efficient equipment
incorporating the latest technology.

FORIGEN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND QUTGO
Foreign Exchange earnings: During the Financial Year, no Revenue from Export was generated and
Foreign Exchange outgo is also Nil

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s Rajesh H. Gupta & Co, Chartered Accountants, (having their Firm Registration No. 133884W)
has conducted the Statutory Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25, they have been
appointment owing to the casual vacancy caused by the resignation of the previous auditors of the
Company. Their appointment has been proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting for next

Five (5} years.

The Board has recommended the name M/s Rajesh H. Gupta & Co, Chartered Accountants, as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual general meeting
6ill the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held in the year of 2030 on such remuneration
and out of pocket expenses as may be decided with the auditor and approved by the Members of the
company.

M/s Rajesh H. Gupta & Co, Chartered Accountants, the Auditor, has confirmed that their appointment
will be within the provisions of Section 139, 141, 142 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and has indicated their willingness to continue as Auditor of the Company.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR
M/s Lalit Singhal & Associates Company Secretary in practice,being appointed as a Secretarial

Auditor of the Company for the consecutive term of five years for the Financial year 2025-26 to 2029-
30 :




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Since the Paid-Up Capital of the company is less then Rs. 10,00,00,000/- and Net worth not exceeding
Rs. 25,00,00,000/- therefore separate section on Corporate Governance practices followed by the
Company as stipulated under Regulation 15(2) and Schedule V of the SEBI Regulations are Not
applicable to the company. However, as measure of good corporate governance practice, the company
has voluntarily initiated to the extent possible, considering constitutions of Board and activities of the
Company, steps towards the compliance of the same.

AUDITORS REPORT
The Auditor’s report IS self-explanatory. There were no observations / qualifications made by the

Auditors in the Audit Report.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD

In previous couple of years due to tight competition the scope of the main business is reducing and
company is finding very difficult to run the business as mentioned in main object of the company, 50
it’s trying to evaluate and working out for opportunity in the field of consultancy services in financial
sectors. Simultaneously, company will try to look out for its feasibility of its main business and
meantime the consultancy services business expands the company will make he necessary changes in

its main object thereafter.

In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(4)(a) of the SEBI
Regulation, annual performance evaluation of the Board and its Directors individually was carried
out. Various parameters such as the Board’s functioning, composition of its Board and Committees,
execution and performance of specific duties, obligations and governance were considered for
evaluation. :

The performance evaluation of the Board as a whole was carried out by the Independent Directors.
The performance evaluation of each Independent Director was also carried out by the Board.

The Board of Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Since the Company do not fall under any criteria specified in sub-section (1) of section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013, it is not requircd to constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR™)
Committee.

INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD (Ind AS)

The Ipdian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) were notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs on
February 16, 2015. These standards will become applicable to the Company, i3 subsidiaries and
associates with effect from April 1, 2016. Your Company has taken adequate steps, in this regard t0
ensure a smooth transition to Ind AS.

MANAGEMENT PERCEPTION TO AUDITORS QUALIFICATION

The observations made by the auditors in their report in respect of the Internal Audit System and
others, read together with the notes on accounts are self-explanatory and do not call for the further
explanation, however the following be noted as further clarification:

Note B (17) in the Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Accounts (Notes A & B) to the
balance sheet

(a) Reference is invited in significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Accounts to the balance sheet
and statement of profit and loss regarding Trade receivable by the management Rs. 8,47,69,870/-
Though the company is confident of recovery, in view of huge losses and uncertainty in the
business operations and hence the management has not made any provision for the same.

The unsecured interest free loan granted by the Company to companies under the same management
with understanding that the same has been granted for temporary period and recoverable on demand,
hence the same is not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.



1y

2}

3)

4)
5)

6)

" PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYESS

There are no such employees whose statement of particulars is required to be given pursuant fo the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rule, 2014.

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR THE DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
AND OTHER FEMPLOYEES

In terms of the provisions of Section 178(3) of the Act, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee
is responsible for formulating the criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes and
independence of a Director. The Nomination & Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
recommending to the Board a policy retating to the remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial
Personne! and other employees. In tinc with this requirement, the Board has approved that all the
provisions of remuneration policy of the company related with criteria for remunetation, determining
gualifications, positive attribufes and independence of a director will be mutatis and mutandis

applicable on our compary

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has developed and implemented a risk management policy which identifies major risks
which may threaten the existence of the Company. The same has also been adopted by Your Board
and is also subject to its review from time fo time. Risk mitigation process and measures have been
also formulated and clearly spelled out in the said policy.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE _
The Company is committed to provide a safe and conducive work environment fo its employees. The
Company adopted Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace Policy in the meeting of Board of
Directors.

The Directors further state that during the year under review, there were no ¢ases filed pursuant to the
Sexual Barassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

SUBSIDIARY _/ JOINT VENTURES _/_ ASSOCIATE COMPANIES _AND_ THEIR
PERFORMANCE
Company does not have any Subsidiary / Joint Venture and Associates of the Comparny.

LISTING OF THE COMPANY’S EQUITY SHARES

The equity shares of your Company are listed on The BSE Lid.; due to regulatory reason trading in

equity shares of the company 15 restricted. During the year under review the company gets relisted on
09% December, 2024

DIRECTORS RESP ONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect 10
Directors’ Responsibility Statement, the Directors confirm that: '

In the preparation of annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along
with proper explanation relating to material departures.

They have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company at the end of the financial year, and of the profit and loss of the company for that period.
They have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company, and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities. '
They have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

They have laid down internal financial controls to be foliowed by the Company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively to the best of their knowledge and ability;
and .

They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
{hat such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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By Order of the Board
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Date; 06/09/2025
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Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 3157 MARCH, 2025

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To
The Members,

PANTHER INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS LIMITED

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by PANTHER INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS LIMITED
(CIN: L17110MH1987PLC045042) (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCES

The Company’s Management is responsible for preparation and maintenance of Secretarial
record and for devising proper systems to ensure compliance with the provision of applicable
laws and regulations.

AUDITORS RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the secretarial records, standard and procedures
followed by the company with respect to secretarial compliances. We believe that audit
evidences and information obtained from the company’s Management is adequate and
appropriate for us to provide basis for our opinion.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering
the financial year ended on March 31%, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed

Office No. 2, Cround Fleor,

102- G/1, Hari Nagar Ashram, +9111 3568 9887
New Delhi, India- 110014 +9181786 00221
(Ashram Chowk, Near Punjab & Sindh Bank)




Here under and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism
in place to the extent and in the manner and subject to reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by PANTHER INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS LIMITED (“the Company”) for the financial year
ended on March 31%, 2025, according to the provisions of:

o0 =

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the regulations and bye-laws framed there under

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings;

The following regulations and guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):

a)
b)
c)
d)
e)

f)

g

h)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992:

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client to the
extent of securities issued;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

F. The other laws, as informed and certified by the Management of the Company which
are specifically applicable to the Company based on their sector/ industry are:

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India:
(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited:




During the period under review, the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following
observations:

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors,

The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent adequately in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

Majority decision are carried through and recorded as part of the Minutes and on inspection of
Minutes there was no dissenting views recorded.

There are adequate systems and process in the company commensurate with the size and
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliances with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

For Anuj Gupta & Associates
ACOMPA™Y Secretaries)

CS Anuj Gupta
(Proprietor)

COP. No. 13025
M. No. 31025

Peer Review Certificate No. 1126/2021
UDIN. A031025G001071372

Date: 25 August, 2025
Place: New Delhi



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
OUR PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

Governance Philosophy of Panther Industrial Products Limited ("The Company") is based on trusteeship,
transparency, accountability and equity. As a corporate citizen, our business fosters a culture of ethical behavior
and disclosures aimed at building trust of our stakeholders. The Company's Code of Business Conduct and Ethics,
internal code of conduct for regulating, monitoring and reporting of trades by Insiders are the regulatory
compliances duly updated by the Company from time to time.

The Company guiding principle is that the strong relationship between culture and strategy will Consistently
produce improved financial performance, better employee engagement, ethical behavior and stakeholder
satisfaction. The company will continue its efforts towards raising the standards in Corporate Governance and will
also review its systems and procedures constantly in pace with the changing economic environment from time to
time as it feels that the Corporate Governance should be need based and is not seen only as an issue of compliance
dictated by statutory requirements.

The company has adopted a code of conduct for its employees including the Managing Director and the Executive
Directors. In addition, the company has adopted a code of conduct for its non-executive directors which includes
code of conduct for Independent Directors which suitably incorporates the duties of Independent Directors as laid
down in the Companies Act, 2013.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Company has a very balanced and diverse Board of Directors, which primarily takes care of the business needs
and stakeholders’ interest. The Company’s Board members are from diverse backgrounds with skills and experience
in critical areas like manufacturing, global finance, taxation banking, entrepreneurship, and general management.
Many of them have worked extensively in senior management positions with a deep understanding of the global
business environment.

Independent Directors are non-executive directors as defined under Regulations 16(1)(b) of SEBI Listing
Regulations read with sections 149 (6) of the Act along with rules framed thereunder.

COMPOSITION:

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and provisions contained under Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement board needs to have an appropriate mix of executive, non-executive and independent directors to
maintain independence and separate its functions of governance and management.

The board of our company comprises a good mix of Executive and Non-Executive Directors including Independent
Directors.

Executive Non- Executive Independent Total
Director Director Director Strength
2 0 2 4

The details of each member of the Board, there designations and date of joining the Board are provided herein
below:

Sr. Name of director Designation Date of Date of
No. Appointment Resignation
1.| Mr. Kaushik Chhotalal Shah Chairman & MD 07/08/1999 NA
2.| Mr. Abhijit Yashwant Kadam Director & CFO 31/07/2023 NA




3.| Mrs. Priyanka Garg Women Director 01/06/2024 NA

4.| Mr. Raju Kumar Mishra Director 15/06/2024 NA

The Company has not entered into any material significant transactions with its promoters, directors or the
management or relatives etc., which may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large.

The details of each member of the Board along with the number of Directorship(s)/ Committee
Membership(s)/Chairmanship(s) are provided herein below:

Name of Director No. of Directorship
Public Private Corporation firms &other
companies
Mr. Kaushik Chhotalal Shah 6 1 NIL
Mr. Abhijit Yashwant Kadam 8 1 NIL
Mrs. Priyanka Garg 2 0 NIL
Mr. Raju Kumar Mishra 1 2 NIL

BOARD MEETINGS:

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on company/ business policy and strategy apart from
other Board business. The Board Meetings are pre-schedule and a tentative annual calendar of the Board and
committee meetings is circulated to the Directors well in advance to facilitate them to plan their schedule and to
ensure meaningful participation in the meetings.

During the financial year ended March 31, 2025 Eleven Board Meetings were held on 01t June, 2024, 15% June,
2024, 18 June, 2024, 01t August, 2024, 13t August, 2024, 15% October, 2024, 06" November, 2024, 13t
November, 2024, 25 November, 2024, 17% January, 2025 and 07t February, 2025. As per the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 the gap between two Board Meetings did not exceed One Hundred Twenty Days.

Following are the details of Director’s attendance at the Board Meetings and Annual General Meeting held during
the Financial Year 2024-25:

Name of Director No. of Board Meetings | Attendance at last AGM i.e.
Attended on 30/09/2024.
Mr. Kaushik Chhotalal Shah 11 Yes
Mr. Abhijit Yashwant Kadam 11 Yes
Mrs. Priyanka Garg 11 Yes
Mr. Raju Kumar Mishra 10 Yes

BOARD PROCEDURE:

The primary role of the Board of Directors is that of trusteeship to protect and enhanced shareholders value through
strategic direction to the Company. The Board of Directors (‘the Board’) is responsible for and committed to sound
principles of Corporate Governance in the Company. The Board plays a crucial role in overseeing how the
management serves the short- and long-term interests of shareholders and other stakeholders of the Company.

To enable the Board, discharge its responsibilities effectively a detailed Agenda folder is sent to each Director in
advance of Board and Committee meetings. The Managing Director briefs the Board at every meeting on the overall
company performance and progress. A detailed functional report is also placed at every Board Meeting. The
functions performed by the Board include review of:



% Strategy and business plans.

< Annual operating and capital expenditure budgets.

% Compliance with all statutory/regulatory requirements and review major legal issues.
% Adoption of quarterly/half yearly/annual results.

% Major accounting provisions and accounting policies.

% Progress of various functions and businesses of the Company.

% Appointment of directors on Board and Members of Management Committee.

% Reviewing quarterly and annual business performance of the Company.

DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT:

Mr. Kaushik Chhotalal Shah (DIN: 00009510) director of the company retired by rotation in the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting, they are eligible for re-appoint on the Board of the company. Board of Directors considered about
their reappointment.

Detailed profile of Directors who are reappointed as follows:

Sr. No. Name of Director Mr. Kaushik Chhotalal Shah

1. Director Identification Number 00009510

2. Date of Birth 5th September 1969

3. Date of Appointment 07t August, 1999

4, Nature of Expertise in specific functional areas Experience in finance and accounting for
more than 20 years

5. Qualification M.COM

6. Directorship Held in other Listed Companies No Director in other listed companies

7. Commiittee Position held in Companies Member of Committee

8. No. of Shares Held (As on 31st March 2025) 0

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Board has formulated a code of conduct for the Board members and senior management of the Company. All
Board members and senior management have affirmed their compliance with the code of conduct. The code
concern Whistle Blower provisions, where the employees of the Company can voice their concerns on violation and
potential violation of this Code in a responsible and effective manner.

The chairman of the company has given a declaration of due compliance with Code of Conduct by the Board
Members and Senior Management of the Company.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD LEADERSHIP:

The responsibilities and authority of the Chairman, CFO and MD, and the lead independent director are as follows:

The Chairman leads the Board. As Chairman, he is responsible for fostering and promoting the integrity of the
Board while nurturing a culture where the Board works harmoniously for the long-term benefit of the Company
and all its stakeholders. The Chairman is primarily responsible for ensuring that the Board provides effective
governance to the Company. In doing so, the Chairman presides over meetings of the Board and of the
shareholders of the Company.

The Chairman takes a lead role in managing the Board and facilitates effective communication among directors.
He is responsible for overseeing matters pertaining to governance, including the organization, composition and
effectiveness of the Board and its committees, and individual directors in fulfilling their responsibilities. The
Chairman provides independent leadership to the Board, identifies guidelines for the conduct and performance of



directors, and oversees the management of the Board’s administrative activities, such as meetings, schedules,
agendas, communication and documentation. The Chairman is also responsible for the overall strategy of the
Company.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

The Board Committees play a crucial role in the governance structure of the Company and have been constituted
to deal with specific area/activities which concerned the Company and need a closure review. Following are the
details of the committees of the company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The company has constituted an Audit Committee as set out in Clause 49 of Listing Agreements with the Stock
Exchanges read with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

1. Objectives of the committee:
The primary objective of the committee is to assist the Board with oversight of:

e The accuracy, integrity and transparency of the Company’s financial statements with adequate and timely
disclosures

e Compliance with legal and regulatory requirements

e The Company’s Independent Auditors’ qualifications and independence

e The performance of the Company’s Independent Auditors and internal auditors
e Acquisitions and investments made by the Company

2. Process Adopted by the committee to fulfill its objectives:

e Ensuring an effective and independent internal audit function, which works to provide assurance regarding
the adequacy and operation of internal controls and processes intended to safeguard the Company’s
assets, effective and efficient use of the Company’s resources, and timely and accurate recording of all
transactions.

e  Conduct Meeting with Independent Auditor from time to time to discuss key observations relating to the
financial statements for the relevant period.

e  Providing an independent channel of communication for the Compliance Officer, internal auditor and the
Independent Auditor.

e Inviting members of the management, and at its discretion, external experts in legal, financial and
technical matters, to provide advice and guidance.

e Reviewing its own charter, structure, processes, membership periodically, and recommending proposed
changes to the Board for approval.

The Audit Committee comprised of One Independent Directors and two Non-Independent Directors as on 31%t
March, 2025:

Sr. Name of Director Designation
No.
1. Mrs. Priyanka Garg Chairman
2. Mr. Abhijit Yashwant Kadam Member
Mr. Kaushik Chhotalal Shah Member




RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE:

The risk management Committee was constituted for redressal of Investors’ Complaints. The composition and role
of committee is as under:

Sr. No. Name of Member Designation
Mrs. Priyanka Garg Chairman
Mr. Abhijit Yashwant Kadam Member
Mr. Kaushik Chhotalal Shah Member

SHAREHOLDERS’ GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE:

The Shareholders Grievance Committee was constituted for redressal of Investors’ Complaints. The composition
and role of committee is as under:

Sr. No. Name of Member Designation
1. Mrs. Priyanka Garg Chairman
2. Mr. Abhijit Yashwant Kadam Member
3. Mr. Kaushik Chhotalal Shah Member
4, Ms. Pooja Jain Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

The committee overseas all matters encompassing the Shareholders/Investors related issues like approval for issue
of duplicate certificates an overseas and review all matters connected with transfer of securities of the Company.
It also looks into Redressal of shareholder’s/ investor complaints, overall performance of the registrar and transfer
agents and recommends improvement in the quality of investor services. It also monitors implementation and
compliance with the Company’s Code of Conduct for Prohibition of Insider Trading in pursuance of SEBI (Prohibition
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992. Given below is the table of grievances received and resolved:

Received/Referred Total Complaints Total Complaints Pending Complaints
From Received during the year Resolved As on 01.04.2025
2024-25
Investor Nil Nil Nil
SEBI Nil Nil Nil
Stock Exchanges Nil Nil Nil

The Company has designated an email id “piplin@rediffmail.com” for the purpose of complaints by investors
electronically.

There is no grievance from shareholders remaining unresolved as every effort is made to immediately redress
investors' grievances without loss of time.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES:

The company does not have any subsidiary company during the Financial Year 2024-25.
DISCLOSURES

A. Disclosure of Materially significant related party transactions:

The company has not entered into any materially significant transactions with its promoters, directors or the
management or relatives etc. that may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large.



A summary of related party transactions is given elsewhere in the Annual Report.

B. Disclosure of Accounting Treatment:
In preparation of financial statements, the Company has followed the Accounting Standards issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

C. Proceeds from Public Issues, Rights Issues, and Preferential Issues etc.:
Company has not raised money by way of public issue, rights issue or preferential issue during the financial
year 2024-25.

D. Details of Non-compliance and Instances of Penalties:

The company was relisted on BSE on 09.12.2024. The Company has complied with the requirements of the
regulatory authorities on matters related to capital markets.

E. Details of Compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of non-mandatory
requirements:

Clause 49 of the Listing agreement requires the company shall obtain a certificate from either the auditors or
practicing company secretaries regarding compliance of conditions of corporate governance as stipulated in
this clause and annex the certificate to the directors’ report, which is sent annually to all the shareholders of
the company. The Company has obtained a certificate from the practicing company secretary to this effect
and the same is given as an annexure to the Directors’ report.

The Clause further states that the non-mandatory requirements may be implemented as per the discretion
of the Company. However, the disclosures of compliance with mandatory requirement and adoption (and
compliance)/ non-adoption of the non-mandatory requirements shall be made on need basis.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
PANTHER INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS LTD

KAUSHIK C. SHAH ABHIJIT Y. KADAM
MANAGING DIRECTOR DIRECTOR & CFO
(DIN: 00009510) (DIN: 06756295)
Address: 53/1, Mint Road Address: 22, B-1, Sector-2 Vishwa,
GPO, Fort, Near Abmer Sweet, Shanti Nagar,
Mumbai-400001 Mira Road, Thane -401107

Date: 06/09/2025
Place: Mumbai



CFO CERTIFICATION TO THE BOARD
CFO Certification in pursuance of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 on Corporate Governance
I Abhijit Yashwant Kadam, Chief Financial Officer (CFO) responsible for the finance function certify that,

A. We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 315t March
2025 and to the best of our knowledge and belief:

a. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material factor
contain statements that might be misleading;

b. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations;

B. To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the year
ended 315t March 2025 are fraudulent, illegal or violate the company’s code of conduct;

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls and that I have evaluated the
effectiveness of the internal control systems of the company and I have disclosed to the auditors and the
Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control, if any, of which I am
aware of and the steps I have taken or Propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

D. Affirmations:

a. There has not been any significant change in internal control over financial reporting during the
year under reference.

b. There has not been any significant change in accounting policies during the year requiring
disclosure in the notes to the financial statements.

c. We are not aware of any instance during the year of significant fraud with involvement therein
of the management or any employee having a significant role in the company’s internal control
system over financial reporting.

Sd/-

Date: 06/09/2025 Abhijit Yashwant Kadam
Place: Mumbai Chief Financial Officer
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Financial Statements

To the Members of
Pznther Industrial Products Limited

Report on the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Panther Industrial Products Limited {the
“Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31% March, 2025, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flows Statement, the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and accerding to the explanations given 1o us. the _
financial statements give the information required by the ‘Act in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with Ind AS and the accounting principies generally accepted in India:

{i) In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31
March, 2025;

(i) In the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the loss for the year ended on
that date;
(i11) In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on
that date; '
and

(iv)  Inthe case of the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013; Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
‘statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder. and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufTicient and appropriate to provide a basis for

»m r opinion.
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Eey Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. However, in view of this we have
determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Management’s Respounsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters related to Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013, (the “Act”) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended. The Company’s Management is responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the respective assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the finanicial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error, which have been used for the
purpose of preparation of these financial statements by the Management of the Company.

in preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issuean auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
ageregate, they could reasonablybe expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statemnents, whether due
1o frand or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to thoserisks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficiert and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the cverride of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

> Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report 1o the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However. future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going Concert.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements. including
the disclosures, and whether the financia) statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter o when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be. communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.




Report on Other Legai and Regulatory Requirements

(a) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (the “Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure “A’
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

(b) As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that -

(i) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(ii) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept s0 far as appears
from our examination of such books;

(2) Reference is invited to note B16 (a) in Notes on Accounts to the balance sheet and
statement of profit and loss regarding Trade receivable by the management < 8.47,69.870.
Though the company is confident of recovery, in view of huge losses and uncertainty in the
business operations and hence the management has not made any provision for the same.

(b) There has been a permanent dimunition in the value of the non current investments which
has been adjusted through retained earnings.

{c) In view of our comments in para above, the said accounts, read with Notes to Accounts
” appearing in the Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts (Notes A & B)to
the balance sheet, statement of profit and loss and cash flow statement give a true and fair

view in conformity with the accounting principles generaliy accepted in India.

(iii) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement
of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(iv) In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Changes
in Equity comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended;

(v) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025, and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as at 3[st March.
2025, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

(vi) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in *Annexure
B™. Our report expresses an unmodified opinicn on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting;

(vii) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given 1o us:




(2)

(b}

()

(@

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financia! position in
its financial statements;

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicabie law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, on long-term contracts including derivative

contracts;

The Company has not transferred the amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (cither from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity,
including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the anderstanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the [ntermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(i) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds

(iif)

have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Uliimate Beneficiaries;

Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to belicve that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11{g), contain any matenal
misstaternent.

UDIN: 25147453 BMKMRG7870

Mumbali,

13™ May, 2025



Annexure A to the Auditors' Report
{(Referred to in paragraph (1) under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’

section of our report of even date)

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 3 of our report to the members of Panther Industrial Products
Limited on the financial (‘the Company') for the year ended 31% March, 2025.

(1

(i)

(iii)

(@)

)

(©)

(d)

(e)

(a)

®

(A) The Company has maintained proper recerds showing full particulars, including
quaniitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipmenit.

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets, and hence, the provisions of the
clause 3(1)(a)(B) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The fixed assets were physically verified by the management during the year. According to
the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed by the
Management on such verification.

The Company. does not have any immovable property, and hence, the provisions of the
clause 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year end.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the company as at
31% March ,2025 for holding any benami property, under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition)Act, 1988(45 of 1988) and rules made there under, hence the provisions of the
clause 3(i)(e) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not made any purchase of inventories during the year. Therefore, the provisions of the
clause 3(ii) {a) of the order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not taken any working capital loans from banks or financial institutions,
hence the provisions of the clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The company during the year has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, 1o
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties, hence the provisions
of the clause 3(jii)(a) to (f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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(iv)

{vi}

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not made any investments during the year to which the section 186 of the Act is
applicable or granted any loan during the year to which section 185 of the Act are
applicable and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits during the year.
Therefore, the provisions of the clause 3(v} of the Order are not applicable to the company.

The company is not covered by section 148(1) of the Act, and hence, the provisions of the
clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable to the company.

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us, during the year the company was
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax,
provident fund, employees state insurance, income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, custom duty,
service tax, excise duty, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it, with the
appropriate authorities.

{b) According to the information and explanation given to us and records of the Comparny, no
dues of Income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, VAT are outstanding
in the books of the Company on account of any dispute.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43
of 1961).

(a)According to the information and explanation given to us, The Company has not taken any
loans or other borrowings from any lender. Hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is
not applicable.

(b)According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not been declared
wilful defavlter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender.

(c)The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no owtstanding term
loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

{d)According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been
used for long-term purposes by the Compary.

(e)According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company does not have any
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, the reporting under Clauses 3(ix)(e) and
3(ix)(D) of the order is not applicable to the Comparr= =,

»
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(x)

(xi)

(xit)

(xiii)

(xv)

(xv)

(2) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not raised
moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) or
term loan. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not made
any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or
partly or optionally) during the year, and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is
not applicable.

(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and according to
the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instence of
material fraud by the Company or on the Company noticed or reported during the year,
nor have we been informed of any such case by the management.

(b)There has been no report filed by us under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of
this report.

(c)As represented to us by the management, no whistle blower complaints have been
received by the Company during the year and upto the date of this report.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company, and hence, the provisions of the clause 3(xii} of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, transaction with the related party is in compliance with section
177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and details of such transaction has been disclosed
in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion and based on our examination, though the company is required to have an
internal audit system under section 138 of the Act, it does not have the same established for
the year, and hence, we were unable to obtain any of the internal audit reports of the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with the directors or persons connected with him, and hengg.the provisions of the clause
3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. =y GUBY.
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(xvi)

{(xvii)

{xviil)

(xix)

(xx)

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b), {¢) and (d) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash fosses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year .

There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and we have
taken into consideration the issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing
auditors.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company
is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.
However, we state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. Further our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and hence can neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us the Company is not required
to spend any amount as per the provisions of Section 135 of the Act. Hence clause 3(xx)(a)
of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For M/s Rajesh H. Gupta & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Hep.No. 133884W
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Annexure — B to the Auditors’ Report
{Referred to in paragraph 5(b)(vi) under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Comparies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have andited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Panther Industrial Products
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31* March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAT™).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit cpinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and {3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inkerent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting July become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deterioraie.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For M/s Rajesh H. Gupta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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: PANTHER INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31T MARCH, 2025
{Amountin T )
Particulars Nofe As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
No. 2025 2024
ASSETS
(1) Non-current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment i 3,39,197 3,42.918
(b) Financial Assets
(iYInvestments 2 - -
(ii)Trade receivables T3 8,47,69,870 8.47,69,870
(ii))Other financial assets 4 12,899,043 72,00,185
(c YOther non-current assets - .
{2) Current assets
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash equivalents 5 95,557 3,33,876
Total Assets 8,65,03,667 9,26,46,859
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 6 1,40,00,970 1,40,00,976
(k) Other Equity 7 (18,85,332) 22,49.358
1,21,15,638 1,62,50,328
LIABILITIES '
(1) Non-current Liabilities
(a} Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 8 7,42,05,653 7,42,05,653
(i1) Trade Payables - -
(iii) Other financial liabilities 9 31,009 31,009
(2) Current Liabilitics
QOther current liabilities 10 1,51,367 5,36,069
Provisions 11 - 16,23,800
Total Equity and Liabilities 8,65,03,667 9,26,46,859
Significant Accounting Policies and A - -
Notes on Accounts forming part of B

Financial Statements
For and on behalf of the Board
As per our report attached to the balance sheet B

For M/s. Rajesh H. Gupta & Co. N \}" M
Chartered Accountants - 2 4
Firm Reg.No. 133884W Kaushik C, Sl ﬁ, Abhijit Y. Kadam

Z it ;}.—hj — Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
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PANTHER INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS LIMITED

‘STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

EOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025
- {Amount in &)

Particulars Note No. Previous year

1 Total Revenue 12

(a) Revenue from Operations - -
3 (b) Income 19,87,536 72,772,014

{c) Other Income ' 30,339 -
4 Total Income 20,17,875 72,72,014
53 Expenses:

(i) Depreciation and Amoriization Expense 1 1,65,820 - 1,34,222

(ii) Other Expenses 13 64.28,614 55,59,533

Total Expenses 65,94,434 56,93,755
6 Profit Before Tax (45,76,559) '15,78,2359
7 Tax Expense -

Current Tax - Provision - 6,12,100
8 Profit /(Loss ) for the year (45,76,559) 9.66,159

Other Comprehensive Income
A.(1) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - : -
(iD)Income tax relating to items that will not be -
reclassified to profit or loss
B.(D)Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
(ii)Income tax relating to items that will be : : - -
reclassified to profit or loss
Total other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

9 FEarnings per Equity Share: 18
(1) Basic ’ (3.27) 0.69
(2) Diluted 3.27) 0.69
Significant Accounting Policies and A
Notes on Accounts forming part of
Financial Statements B
For M/s. Rajesh H. Gupta & Co. For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants IS M
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PANTHER INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2025

a Equity Share Capital

(1) Current Reporting Period

{Amount in T }

Balance as at 1st |Changes in Equity  |Restated balance |Changes in Balance as at 31st
April, 2024 Share Capital due |as at 1st April,  lequity share March, 2025

to prior period 2024 capital during

grrQors the current year
14000070 - 14000070 - 114000070

(2) Previous Reporting Period

{Amount in &)

Balance as af 1st \Changes in Equity |Restated balance |Changes in Balance as at 31st
April, 2023 Share Capital due  \as at 1st April,  |equity share March, 2024

to prior period 2023 capital during

L2rrors _ the current vear
14000070 - |14000070 - 14000070

b Other Equity
(1) Current Reporting Period
{dmount in T )
Particulars Reserves & Surplus Total

Securiies Premium Capital Reserve [Retained Earing
Balance as at Ist - 20,00,000 2,49,.358 22,49 358
April, 2024
Changes in - - 4 41,869.00 4,441,869
accounting policy
or prior period
SrYors ' :
Restated balance - 20,00,000 6,91,227 26,911,227
as atlst
April 2024
Total - - (45,76,559) (45,76,559)
Comprehensive ' '
Income of the
| Current Year
Dividends Paid - - - -
Balance as at - 20,00,000 (38,85,332) (18,85,332)
31st March 2025
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(2) Previous Reporting Period

PANTHER INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS LIMITED

(Amountin <)

Particulars

Reserves & Surplus

Securiies Premium

Capital Reserve

Retained Earing

Total

Balance as ar 1st -
April, 2023

20,00,0660

(7,16,801)

12,683,199

Changes in -
accounting policy
or prior period
grrOrS

Restated balance -
as atlst
April, 2023

20,00,000

(7,16,801)

12,853,199

Total o -
Comprehensive
Income of the
|Current Year

9,66,159

9,66,159

Dividends Paid -

Balance as ar -
31st March,2024

20,00,000

2,49,358

22,49,358
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PANTHER INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS LIMITED

CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2625

For the For the
year ended year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2024
{Amount in T ) {Amount in T}
A Cash Flow from Opertaing Activities
Profit/(L.oss) (45,76,559) 9,66,159
Adjusiments for :
Depreciation 1,65,820 1,34,222
Purchase of Computer & Laptop (1,62,100) -
Bank Charges 9635 467
Operating Profit / {(Loss) before working capital changes (45,71,874) 11,00,848
Adjustments for :
{Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables S - -
(Increase)/Decrease in other non-current financial assets 59,01,152 {15,39,031)
Increase/(Decrease) in other non-current financial liabilities (3.84,702) 6,13,542
Increase/ (Decrease) in Profit & Loss Appropriation 441,869 . -
Increase/(Decrease) in provisions (16,23,800) -
Cnsh generated from Operations (2,37,355) 1,75,359
Net Cash from Operating Activities (A) (2,37,355) 1,75,359
B Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Sale of asset (Motor Car) - -
Net cash used in investing activities B) - -
C Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Issue of Share Capital : - -
Bank Charges : : (965) _ (467)
Net Cash from financing activities (C) . (965) (467)
Total (A)+HB)yHC) (2,38,320) 1,74,892
Ne.t Increase/ (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalent.
Add: Cash and cash equivalent as at the begining of the period. 3,33,876 1,58,984
Cash and cash equivalent as at the end of the period. 95,557 3,33,876
For M/s. Rajesh H. Gupta & Co. v For and on behaif of the Board
Chartered Accountants e e “*ﬁ“*
s> SURES .. .3/ o
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Rajesh Kumar Gupia ,}‘h xS 5 ;2  Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
Partner (DIN: 0000951 0)
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PANTHER INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES ON THE
BALANCE SHEET AND STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

A SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1 Compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
( referred to as "Ind A8" ) as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to time.

4 Basis of accounting
a The accounts are prepared on historical cost convention on accrual system of accounting except for
certain Finanacial Assets that are measured at fair value.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The Compdny has applied the same accounting policies for preparing its opening Ind AS financial
statements and all subsequent periods presented in these financial statements,

3 Property, Plant and Equipment
Tangible

Tangible assets are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. The cost comprises the purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and ali
expenses, direct and indirect, specifically attributable to its acquisition and bringing it to its working
condition for its intended use. Any frade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase
price. The Company considered the previous GAAP carrying cost of plant and equipments as deemed
cost, as the fair value of these assets does not differ materially from its carrying cost.

4 Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on full value of the assets purchased during the year. It is provided on the
basis as prescribed in Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended.

Depreciation is provided for property, plant and equipment S0 as to expense the cost over their
estimated useful lives based on evaluation. The estimated useful lives and residual value are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for ona
prospective basis.

5 Financial Instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair vajue.
Transaction costs that are directly atiributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and

Annual Accounts 2024-25



PANTHER INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS LIMITED

financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or
financial liability. '

6 Claims, demands and contingencies
Disputed and/or contingent liabilities are either provided for or disclosed depending on Managements

judgment of the potential outcome.

7 Revenue Recognition
Expenses and Income considered payable and receivable, respectively, are accounted for on accrual
basis when no significant uncertainty as to determination or realisation exists.

8 FEarnings per share (EPS)
The earnings considered in ascertaining the Company's EPS is the net profit after tax. The numbet of

shares used in computing basic EPS is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the
period. '

tzorus (BN
 Mumoat-55.
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PANTHER INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS LIMITED

As at
31st March, 2025

4

2 Non-Current Assets

Financial Assets
Investments ***
(@) Equity Shares (Quoted) (Fully paid} - Non Trade
57000 (57000) Atcom Technologies Ltd.* -

(b) Equity Shares (Unquoted) (Fully paid) - Trade
6500 (6500) Madhavpura Mercantile Co-op Bank Ltd ** -

As at

31st March, 2024
T

* Securities pledged for loans obtained by associate concerns from a bank
#* Shares lying with CBL

Notes:
(1) Aggregate of Quoted Investments :
Cost -

Market Value

{Matket price at cut-off date not available)

(2) Aggregate of Unquoted Investments :
Cost -

Trade receivables
4 . . . .
(a) Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six

months considered good * 8,47,69,870

8,47,69,870

(b) Other Debts -
- 8,47,69,870

8,47,69,870

* ( Due from a company under the same management p
NH Securities Ltd ¥ 8,47,69,870 (previous year X 8,47,69,870) {?g
,,_3"’*-

(Refer Note no 26) ?'(

’?—?{P '\.ﬁu 11k
e
QEBA
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PANTHER INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS LIMITED

4 Other Financial Assets (Unsecured and considered good)

(a) Security Deposits

(b) Inter-corporate Deposits
(i) To related partices
(i) To Others

(¢) Advances recoverable in cash or in kind
or for value to be received
(1) To related partiees *
(ii} To Othets

(d) Income-tax

As at As at
315t March.2025 31" March, 2024
g 4
52,252 46,650
1,63,000 31,29,680
. 8,85,038 23,74,433
1,98.753 16,49,432
12,99,043 72,00,195

* ( Advances Recoverable from Claasic Share & Stock Broking Services Ltd
T 1,63,000 (12.55% of other Finacnical Assets ) (previous year ¥ 31,29,680)

5 Cash and Cash equivalents
(a) Cash on hand

(b) Bank Balances
With Scheduled Banks
On Current Account
On Debenture Interest Account

i</ wisibie Lin®: A
fag) yayola BRAGS 1 &t

& g
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6, Share Capital

PANTHER INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS LIMITED

(a) The Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up share capital comprises of equity shares

having a par value of Rs 10 each as follows -

As at 31st As at 31"
March, 2025 March, 2024
& &
i) Authorised
19,50,000 {19,50,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 1,95,00,000 1,95,00,000
50,000 (50,000) 12% Redeemable Preference
Shares of Rs 10 each 5,00,000 5,00,000

2,00,00,000

(if) Issued, Subscribed aad Fully Paid-up
14,00,007 (14,00,007) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 1,40,00,070
90 {90} 12% Redeemable Preference

2,00,00,000

1,40,00,070

Shares of Rs 10 each

900 900
1,40,00.970 1,40,00,970

(b) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the begining and at the end of the year

Particulars
- Equity

As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March,2024
No. of shares Amount  No. of shares  Amount

Equity Shares at the begining
Changes during the year

Fquity Shares at the end

4 4

14,00,007  1,40,00,070 14,00,007  1,40,00,070

14,00,007  1,40,00,070 14,00,007  1,40.00,07C

Particulars
12% Redeemable Preference Shares

Preference Shares at the begining
Changes during the year

Preference Shares at the end

Annual Accounts 2024-25

As at 31st March, 2025 As at March, 2024
No. of shares  Amount No. of shares  Amount
¢ 4
90 S0 90 G300
90 900 90 900
Ly ) \
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PANTHER INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS LIMITED

{c) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
Equity Shares - The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 each.
Preference Shares -

12% Redeemable Preference Shares are redeemable at Rs 10 per share

{d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company -

Equity Shares As at 315t March,2023 As at 31st March, 2024
Name of Shareholders . No. of shares %% No. of shares b
Saimangal Investrade Ltd 686337 49,0238 686637 49.0453
3A Capital Services Ltd 86320 6.1657 86125 6.1517
12% Redeemable Preference Shares As at 31st March,2025 As at 315t March, 2024
Name of Shareholders No. of shares %  WNo. of shares %
Bharat Desai, j ointly with Bhor Inds. Ltd 15 16.67 15 16.67
8. Rajaraman, jointly with Bhor Inds. Ltd 15 16.67 15 16.67
Mayur Udeshi, jointly with Bhor Inds. Ltd 15 16.67 15 16.67
Dipak Tanna, jointly with Bhor Inds. Ltd i3 - 16.67 15 16.67
Neeta Tanna, jointly with Bhor Inds. Ltd 135 16.66 15 16.66
Abhiji Tanna, jointly with Bhor Inds. Ltd 135 16.66 is 16.66
(e) Sharcholding of Promoters
Sharehalding of promoters as at March.31, 2025 is as follows:
Equity Shares Asat 31 st March,2025|  As at 31st March, 2024
No. of % No. of % 9% Changes During the
Name of Shareholders shares shares Year
Saimangal Investrade Ltd 686337  49.0238 686637 49.0453 0.0215
Shareholding af promoters as at March 31, 2024 is as follows:
Equity Shares . As at 31st March,2024 |  As at 31st March, 2023
No. of % No. of % % Changes During the
Name of Shareholders shares shares Year
‘Saimangal Investrade Lid 686637  49.0453 686037 . 49.0453 NIL
- )
& -
i o
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7 OTHER EQUITY
(a) Capital Reserve

(b) (Deficity Surplus in Statement of
Profit and Loss
As per last Financial Statement
Add: Profit & Loss Appropriation a/c
Add: Profit / (Loss) for the year

8 Financial Liabilities
Borrowings-Unsecured
(2) Inter-corporate Depaosits
From Related Parties

(b) From Cthers **

PANTHER INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS LIMITED

** deferred sales tax loan from SICOM carries Nil interest

and have no repayment schedule.

9 Other Financial Liabilities
Other Long-term Liabilities
For Others

10 Others Current Liabilities
{a) For Expenses
{b) For Other Liabilities

11 Provisions
Provision for Income-tax

Annual Accounts 2024-25

As at As at
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
I ¥
20,00,000 20,00,000
2,49,358 (7,16,801)
4,41,869
(45,76,559) (38,85,332) 9,66,159
(18,85,332) 22,49,358
7,18,85,583 7,18,85,583
23,206,070 23.20,070
7.42,05,653 7,42.05,653
31,009 31,009
- 1,48,107 1,35,537
3,260 4,00,532
1,51,367 5,36,069
- 16,23,800

. 16,23,800_



PANTHER INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS LIMITED

As at Asat
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
T 4
12 Total Revenue
(a) Income from operations - -
(b) Income 19,87,536 72,72,014
(Tax deducted at sources Rs.1,98,753)
(previous year Rs. 7,27,201) 19,87,536 72,72,014
13  Other Expenses
Business Promotion Expenses 65,783 27.32,447
Communication expenses 17,550 16,200
Printing and stationery 41,104 41,019
Electricity Expenses 427,120 4,16,160
Motor car expenses 1,32,800 1,41,200
Registrar and transfer agent expenscs 60,603 60,454
Legal and Professional fees 248,973 14,87,000
Professional fees (GST) 9,000 -
Auditors’ Remuneration 20,000 20,000
ROC filing fees 22,900 1,800
Salary - Company Secretary 1,40,000 -
Donation 1,84,000 -
Listing Fees _ 20,33,750 -
Re-instatement Fees 26,00,000 .
Miscellaneons expenses 4,25,031 6,43,253
64,28,614 55,59,533
14  The accounts include remuneration to Auditors in respect of '
Audit Fees 20,000 20,000

15 a) Contingent liabilities not provided for - Income-tax ¥ NIL (previous year I NIL)

b) The Company Master Data of the MCA shows the status of Charges created as "Open" being
charges not satisfied for matters pertaining to old management (Bhor Wavelock Industries Ltd).
The Company does not envisage any liability arising out of the same.

16 The Tax Recovery Officer (TRO) has passed orders under section 226 of the Income-tax
Act, 1961 for attachment of credit balances lying in some bank accounts and has commenced
recovery proceedings under section 222,

17 Trade Receivables amounting to ¥ 8,47,69,870 (previous year X 8,47,69,870 ) is due from
shefiagncial and legal matters involving the said
\ering the amount aud no provision is

A A
T s @
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Annua! Accounts 2024-25 RN hEp A '.



PANTHER INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS LTD

18 Earnings per share - 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
(a) Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs 10 each
(i) Number of shares at the beginning of the year : 14,00,007 14,00,007
(i) Number of shares at the end of the year 14,00,007 14,00,007
(b) Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year '14,00,007 14,00,007
(c) Net profit after tax available for equity share holders (in %) (45,76,559) 9,66,159
(d) Basic and dituted earnings per share (in I} (3.27 0.69

19 Segment Reportmg
No reporting is required to be made as the Company has not undertaken any trading activity

during the year under review.

20 The Deferred Tax Assets has not been created in the accounts for the year ended 3 1st March,
20243as the Company considers that there is reasonable certainty of sufficient future taxable
income being available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized/utilized.

21 The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication
of impairment based on internal / external factors i.. when the carrying amounts of these assets
exceeds the recoverable amount, an impairment loss is charged to the profit and loss account in
the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. An impairment loss recognised in prior
accounting periods is reversed or reduced if there has been a favorable change in the estimate of
recoverable amount.

22 There are no dues / overdues to Small Scale and/or Ancillary Industrial Suppliers on account of
principai and/or interest as at the close of the year. :

23 Related Party dlsclosu res '
The information given below is in respect of the related parties whxch have been identified as

such by the Board of Directors.

(2) Name and nature of relationship of the party where control exists:
(i} Particulars of Key Management Personnels:

Name : Designation

Saimangal Investrade Ltd Company having Control of the
reporting enterprise

Mr. Kaushik C. Shah (Director) ' } Key management personnet

: S R has influence in virtue of common

directorship

KNP Securities Pvt Ltd }

Classic Share & Stock Broking Services Litd } Companies in which key

Netscape Software Ltd management personnel have common

Gibs Computers Ltd directorship '

Chat Computers Ltd /:3% '- 5

| & ¥ -
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(b} Related Party Transaction

24 (a)

(b) Figures have been rounded-off to the nearest rupee.

Transactions with related parties during the year:

Company having
control over the

Transaction undertaken reporting enterprise

Expenses incwred on behalf

of the reporting enterprise 0
)

ICD advanced (Net) by the

reporting enterprise 0

- Q)]

Expenses reimbursed by the

reporting enterprise 0
©

Debit balances outstanding

as on 31.03.2025 0
(-)

Credit balances outstanding
as on 31.03.2025

PANTHER INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS LIMITED

{Amount in T }
companies in which

key management
Key personnel  have common
Management dirsetorship
Personne!
H 15,186
) (14,57,817)
0 -
) -
( -
- -
0 8.49,32,870
) (8,78,99,550)
31,009 -
(31,009) -

Note: i) Figures in parenthesis denote previous year figures

Previous year's figures have been regrouped, re-arranged and / or recast, wherever considered
necessary to correspond with current year’s classification / disclosures.

25 Information pursuant to Part 11 of Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013 are given io the
extent they are applicable to the Company.
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